1992

# Utah v. James C. Quada : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

Follow this and additional works at: [https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu\\_ca1](https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca1)



Part of the [Law Commons](#)

Original Brief Submitted to the Utah Court of Appeals; digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah; machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

Jan Graham; Utah Attorney General; Attorney for Respondent.

Cleve J. Hatch; Utah County Public Defender Assoc.; Attorney for Appellant.

---

## Recommended Citation

Brief of Appellant, *Utah v. James C. Quada*, No. 920778 (Utah Court of Appeals, 1992).  
[https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu\\_ca1/3786](https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca1/3786)

This Brief of Appellant is brought to you for free and open access by BYU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Utah Court of Appeals Briefs by an authorized administrator of BYU Law Digital Commons. Policies regarding these Utah briefs are available at [http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/utah\\_court\\_briefs/policies.html](http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/utah_court_briefs/policies.html). Please contact the Repository Manager at [hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu](mailto:hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu) with questions or feedback.

BRIEF

UTAH  
DOCUMENT  
KFU  
50  
.A10  
DOCKET NO. 920778

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE STATE OF UTAH

---

STATE OF UTAH,	:	
	:	
Plaintiff-Respondent,	:	Case No.
	:	
v.	:	Utah Court of Appeals 920778-CA
	:	Utah District Court 92140096
	:	
JAMES C. QUADA	:	
	:	
Defendant-Appellant.	:	

---

BRIEF OF DEFENDANT-APPELLANT

---

APPEAL FROM A CONVICTION OF EVADING,  
A THIRD DEGREE FELONY AND  
RESISTING ARREST, A CLASS B MISDEMEANOR  
IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT  
IN AND FOR UTAH COUNTY, STATE OF UTAH

THE HONORABLE BOYD L. PARK, PRESIDING

---

JAN GRAHAM  
UTAH ATTORNEY GENERAL  
236 State Capitol  
Salt Lake City, Ut 84114  
Attorney for Plaintiff-Respondent

CLEVE J. HATCH  
UTAH COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER ASSOC.  
40 South 100 West, Suite 200  
Provo, UT 84601  
Attorney for Defendant-Appellant

FILED

AUG - 6 1993

COURT OF APPEALS

## **JAMES C. QUADA**

### ***Supplement to the Brief***

Let the record show that I am now in my 15th day of incarceration. I have not yet been told that I am under arrest nor had a warrant served on me. I have had my Miranda rights read to me but immediately and ever since have they tried to violate them and have done so. I have not yet had the right to counsel of my choice and this leaves me at a great disadvantage, not knowing where to turn or what to do. I have had my own and other's property - lawfully in my control - confiscated without due process of law, thus violating my basic Constitutional rights. I have been denied access to a copy of the U.S. and Utah Constitutions and the Utah Code as well as other documents necessary in the preparation of my case. I have had immoral homosexual comments made to me by the Utah County Sherriff's office on 2-10-92 at about 5:00 p.m.. I have been denied the right to phone unless I deny my own basic rights to life liberty and property which I regard as sacred rights which I have not yet given up and so far have not had access to a phone. I have been brought before this court in bonds of chains without counsel after having been incarcerated 6 days having had no charge or warrants of arrest served on me to that time. At which time I stood mute before this court. This court showed no evidence that it was a competent court of jurisdiction to try this sovereign American free and natural citizen on the matter of the case.

This court assumed jurisdiction on both counts. I deny this court jurisdiction on both counts. Because this court assumed jurisdiction when I was not represented by counsel. I demanded all of my rights "sua sponte". This court did not advise me of my rights timely and has already violated many of them some of which I am aware of and some of which I am not. I therefore; assuming that this court will continue to assume jurisdiction and continue to deny my rights "sua sponte," demand all my rights at all times and in all places and under all circumstances including my rights "sua sponte". This court has violated my Miranda rights which I demand. This court is in the process of violating my Constitutional "Common Law" rights to a trial by a 12 man Constitutional Common Law Jury of MY peers. So that all may know who are MY PEERS, I declare myself to be a Sovereign American Citizen Free and Natural born and I am under bondage to no man and in no way. I am a merchant and trader AT LAW ON A CASH BASIS. To be my peer one must not only be in this condition or status, but have the same beliefs and principles of life. I demand the right to counsel and counsel of my choice. I have not yet recieved a copy of the charges against me even though I made such a request of the Sheriff 2-13-92 to which I have a receipted acknowledgement dated 2-14-92 @ 7 a.m.. I have been forced to go to the bathroom and bathe and everything else under the constant surveillance of a TV camera watched by both men and women violating my right to privacy without due process of law or counsel of my choice. In this matter I charge the

Utah County Sheriff with producing pornographic material and lay this matter before the citizens and this court.

We are guaranteed under the U.S. Constitution the right to life, liberty and property. These are basic "God-given" inalienable Constitutional Common Law rights. These rights are inter-connected one to another. In the fullest sense one cannot have the fullness of one of these rights without having the fullness of other two. If one is partially denied his right to property he is at the same time partially denied his right to life and liberty. If one's liberty is threatened his life and property are also threatened. At this time and in this matter my life and liberty and my property are being denied and threatened and that in the grossest of ways. To me this is the greatest robbery, the greatest rape, the greatest pillage in America today and with all my soul I hate such a system! For this cause, I stand with that great American patriot, that great lover of freedom, Patrick Henry and declare to this court and to all men "GIVE ME LIBERTY OR GIVE ME DEATH." This court has incarcerated me eight days to this time without the representation of council of my choice or due process of law under unlawful illegal and oppressive bail. I declare this to be and UNCONSTITUTIONAL BILL OF ATTAINDER!!!

Because this court has denied my rights in many instances and continue to do so, I declare this court incompetent to hear this matter at this time on this Sovereign Citizen.

I fear no man and I have enmity toward no man. I love the Constitutional law of my country. If I have taken anyone's life I am

willing to give mine before a firing squad. I have never avoided a court appearance and never intend to.

I commend myself into the hands of my Father and my God and His divine Son Jesus Christ whom I am trying to serve and represent. I acknowledge that I have many weaknesses and imperfections which I am trying to the best of my capacities to overcome and I hope someday to do so with the help of Almighty God. I want it fully and completely understood that I and I alone am fully and completely responsible for my thoughts and my actions. If I have hurt or offended anyone I ask their forgiveness and I stand ready to make restitution and I say I am truly sorry. I have nothing but my memory, paper, and pencil and most importantly the help of Almighty God. I therefore am not adequately prepared to defend myself.

May I address this court? Your honor have you taken an oath of office to uphold the Constitution of the United States of America? As such your honor are you an officer of the law? As such are you required to respect my Miranda rights? I declare that you have violated my Miranda rights and on this grounds and this alone at this time I demand that these charges be dismissed.

James C. Quada

**FEBRUARY 27, 1992**

To this time I have had less than 5 minutes with counsel and that not counsel of my choice. I requested Mr. Jenkins to have Mr. Elkins see me last week while here in court 2-19-92. This has not happened.

I declare this to be a violation of my Constitutional rights and grossly inadequate to my defense. I have not had access to proper matter or materials to aid in my own defense. I have written a letter to the Sheriff which I will read. I demand a private cell if I must be denied my liberty for my own safety and protection.

Alma 10:27 "...I say unto you, that the foundation of the destruction of this people is beginning to be laid by the unrighteousness of your lawyers and your judges."

I would add in our case not only is the foundation laid but the building is nearly completed and that what is termed "law enforcement agencies" are aiding and abetting in the process.

Alma 10:32 "Now the object of these Lawyers was to get gain; and they got gain according to their employ."

To me, this is true of "Judges" and "law enforcement" also and I see it as one large conspiracy feeding one another at the expense of the poor.

Hel 7:5 " Condemning the righteous because of their righteousness; letting the guilty and the wicked go unpunished because of their MONEY;...that they might get gain and glory of the world, and, moreover, that they might the more easily commit adultery, and steal, and kill, and do according to their own wills..."

I feel this is appropriate and to point and verily true.

3 NE 6:21 "...and those who were angry were chiefly the chief judges, and they who had been high priests and lawyers; yea, all those who were lawyers were angry with those who testified of these things."

I suspect that even now as then the truth is not wanted.

Ether 10:5-6 "...and did lay that upon men's shoulders which was grievous to be borne; yea; he did tax them with heavy taxes; and build many prisons, and who so would not be subject unto taxes he did cast into prison; and whoso was not able to pay taxes he did cast into prison; and he did cause that they should labor continually for their support; and whoso refused to labor he did cause to be put to death."

I cannot find words to more perfectly express the situation we are in today in America. We may escape death but in America today it is impossible to escape taxes under this wicked tyrannical system. I pray Almighty God to come out in the fury of his wrath and destroy this wicked Satanic System. I rebel against taxing my labor which is my property. I rebel against taxes on my rights to ingress and egress to the highways and waterways of my country. I rebel against Sheriffs and on their personell or Judges and their courts or lawyers taxing me in my person or my property thus threatening my life not only by denial

but in very deed. May God grant that the eyes of the blind may be opened that they may see their awful situation and may He as well as myself have compassion on them. I can only tell the truth I cannot contend or fight or argue for these are principles of Hell. I am still willing to make restitution for any damage I have done to anyone's person or property. I declare the State has produced no such evidence and request my release. I rest my case in the hands of



Almighty God to whom I dedicate and consecrate my life and all that I have or am.

James C. Quada

P.S. I feel as did the Prophet Joseph Smith "I go like a lamb to the slaughter."

Note: I want you of the Jury to understand what is being done. this is a taxing system and they do not care who pays the tax. If I pay the tax I keep my freedom! If I refuse to pay the tax I go to jail and you the Jury and the poor citizens pay the tax by keeping me in jail. Why do you think real criminals, murderers etc. stay in prison 10-15 years before being executed? It is a matter of money they want the money you pay to keep them there. What would happen if every person in Utah who got a traffic ticket elected his right to go to jail? Would it not break this corrupt Satanic System? Satan proposed to force all to do right before we came here and all he wanted was the glory, honor, praise, power and authority over us as his reward. Is there any difference in this and giving a ticket to someone and fining them before anyone's life liberty or property is damaged or destroyed? God allows one his agency to violate law and suffer the consequences based on that law and nothing else. Satan stops you before you commit the crime and takes away your agency! That is the system we have here today. IT IS SATANIC!!! I hate this system and will fight it until

the last breath issues from my soul!!! I pray you the Jury will do likewise. Your LIFE, LIBERTY and PROPERTY and most especially your FREE AGENCY depend on it.

Jurors do you know who hires the public defender? The County Attorney does!!! Who is prosecuting me? The County Attorney!!! Is the public defender's allegiance to "The County Attorney" through whose agency he receives his pay? Can I get competent counsel under this circumstance? Will the public defender appeal all the way to the Supreme Court? If not can I get JUSTICE? See Exhibit "A"

APRIL 6, 1993

I feel it necessary at this time to give the background for my actions. I cannot remember dates but about March 1991 I was given a speeding ticket by Lehi City Police I believe for 35 in a 25 MPH zone. I went before a Justice of the Peace and was fined \$25.00 and at my request was given the option of spending one night in the Utah County Jail from 6PM to 6AM. This is on citation #1668. I reported to the jail on a Monday evening at 6PM. I refused to give my fingerprints, fill out a form or have any picture taken. My fingerprints and my photo are my property and are constitutionally protected and I choose not to give up constitutional rights. Filling out a form would violate my right to privacy and I choose not to give up that right. The jailer refused to admit me and called the J.P. I believe his name

was Worthen and he requested me to return to Lehi the next Monday which I did although I felt I had met the requirement of "the law" by reporting to jail. Hi increased the fine to \$35.00 and gave me no option of going to jail and required it be paid in 30 days. At this point I am under double-jeopardy! I did nothing. In September 1991 I received a letter dated September 6th stating a warrant for my arrest has been issued and will be held 5 days pending my paying \$35.00 cash bail. I did nothing. A warrant was issued for \$150.00 which is triple-jeopardy as there are 3 different fines and apparently 3 different trials for one offense. The Lehi case number is 377-91. What options does a Sovereign Citizen have against such "law" and such "administration"? I cannot support or sustain such a system as I believe there has been no crime and there are no damages and there is no victim. No jury of MY PEERS would assess me in any way for speeding until there was an accident and I was judged by a jury at fault. So again I did nothing.

Now we come to 5 Feb 1992. I was stopped on a dark country road near Lehi and detained 30 to 45 minutes. I was asked to get out of the car which I refused. I suspected they may be after me for the previous situation but I must resist such an action in order to uphold my constitutional rights for if I voluntarily give them up I lose them. I might add here that God-given inalienable Constitutional Common-Law rights are more precious to me than life itself for without them there is no LIFE. Me forefathers shed their blood to bequeath

these rights, blessings and privileges to me and I am willing to do the same for my posterity. I drove away at this point as I had been served no papers nor told I was arrested and in fact to this date 4-6-93 I have not been served with any papers or told I was under arrest. I was eventually surrounded by police and I stopped the vehicle on private property at a friend's house. I was using a friend's car there was a wrecker at the scene before they broke into the car and got me out and handcuffed me and took me to jail. The car was soon towed away and impounded claiming it to be abandoned. John's towing wanted over \$200.00 to get the car back and I told them the car was not worth that much and he dropped it to \$150.00 and I told him it was not worth that to me and he finally let me have it for \$75.00 and I paid \$18.00 to get another window which sheriff deputy Pickup broke. I spent 22 days in jail. A "Bill of Attainder" "is a legislative act which inflicts punishment without a judicial trial." The breaking of the window the impounding of the car and placing me in jail for 22 days all are violations of Article I Section 9 of the U.S. Constitution. This and this alone is more than grounds for the dismissal of the case. In fact I should be compensated for the 22 days I spent in jail unjustly and for the broken window and the impound fee and all those who have violated the Constitution should be tried at law. "No citizen shall be deprived of life, liberty or property without the judgement of his peers." Senator George Vest Congressional Record Vol. 13 page 1214.

"I regard public office as a public trust and that officers are SERVANTS, not the MASTERS of the people." Heber M. Wells first Governor of Utah Jan 6, 1896.

Part of the time I was in jail I was held on "20,000.00 bail when I was released I was let out on my own recognizance. Was this not excess bail a violation of the Constitution under Article VIII? Was this not a "Bill of Attainder"?

Sua Sponte

Do I not have a right to a trial by a jury of my peers before imprisonment? This is adequate grounds for dismissal. I want now to discuss how I have been represented. I have been represented by Mr.'s Jenkins, Madsen, Elkins, Musselman, and Hatch! Each separately and at different times and in this order. I requested Mr. Jenkins to have Mr. Elkins contact me in jail. I wrote a letter to Mr. Madsen and left it with his secretary requesting an interview. I requested an interview with Mr. Musselman through his secretary while she was on the phone with him. None of these requests were granted!!! I requested trial be delayed by Judge Park as nobody had yet talked with me or prepared my defense. This was denied. Thus I have been deprived of my right to counsel and the right to properly defend my case and Judge Park forced me to proceed under these terms with this knowledge. I protest now as I did then. This is a flagrant violation

of VI Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and is adequate grounds for dismissal of this cause which I demand.

Judge Park stated in court out of the hearing of the Jurors, "I do not believe it is possible to go 60 miles per hour in a two block distance and turn both corners." I agree with the Judge in this especially with a 1973 Ford Pinto station wagon in poor condition. Yet I have been convicted of a felony for doing something the car cannot do. This just because a jury "not my peers" took a public SERVANT'S word over that of his MASTER! I protest. This is grounds for dismissal. Please find enclosed a copy of an add placed in the Daily Herald June 15 through 21, 1992 requesting a proposal of sealed bid to be "Utah County Public Defender" to be hired by the County Commission for the year 1993. If the County Attorney is paid by the County Commission and the public defender is also paid by the county commission and the County Attorney has anything to do with the hiring of the Public Defender are they not both obligated to the county commission or to the "same master"? Does this make them "partners in crime" so to speak? Is not the Public Defenders first allegiance to the County Commission/ Does not the County Commission want taxes and fines from the Public directly or indirectly? If I get fined does not the system get back the cost of paying the Public Defender? If I refuse to pay a fine and only serve time in jail do they not get their taxes from the general public in property taxes. Is it possible under such a system for me and my interest to be truly represented? Can we have "Liberty and Justice for All" under such a system? Does this not

violate my Constitutional Rights under VI Amendment rights? Is this not more than grounds enough for the dismissal of this cause?

Regarding Jury instructions: The charge to the jury in the first jury trial before the Supreme Court of the U.S. illustrates the TRUE POWER OF THE JURY. In the February term of 1794, the Supreme Court conducted a jury trial in the case of the State of Georgia vs. Brailsford, et al 3 Dall.1 "...it is presumed, that, juries are the best judges of facts; it is, on the other hand, presumed that the courts are the best judges of law, But still BOTH objects are within your power of decision... you have a right to take upon yourselves to judge of BOTH, and to determine the LAW as well as the fact in controversy," (Emphasis added) (State of Georgia vs. Brailsford, et al 3 Dall.1)

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