1992

# Utah v. James C. Quada : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

Additional reasons for refusing to reach the merits of defendant's various claims are set out in the arguments, infra.

Defendant has filed a pro se brief in addition to his counsel's brief [hereinafter "Appellant's Brief II"]. The brief raises numerous claims of error, two of which are included in the discussions found at Points IV and VI, infra. Even taking into account the general allowance granted pro se litigants, see

Winter v. Northwest Pipeline Corp., 820 P.2d 916, 918-19 (Utah 1991) (recognizing that a pro se litigant is not held to presenting his arguments with the precision of an attorney, but also cannot expect the Court to become his advocate), the remaining arguments should be disregarded as they are either factually insupportable in that they are contrary to the record evidence or otherwise lack any evidentiary or record support or citation; are legally insupportable as reversible error in that, even if error was committed, defendant has failed to establish that any errors would have substantially affected the outcome of his case; are devoid of supporting legal analysis; or are wholly immaterial, emotional, and inaccurate, neither assisting this Court in disposing of the case nor setting forth any appropriate, concise challenge as required under rule 24(k). Koulis, 746 P.2d at 1184-85; see also State v. Knight, 734 P.2d 913, 920 (Utah 1987); State v. Cabututan, 213 Utah Adv. Rep. 18, 22 (Utah App. 1993) (refusing to address several issues regarding prejudice on the part of the jury, the court, and the justice system based on defendant's failure to provide any legal analysis). Accordingly, this Court should disregard defendant's pro se brief and assume the correctness of the decision below. See Koulis, 746 P.2d at 1184-85.

### POINT I

THIS COURT NEED NOT REACH THE MERITS OF DEFENDANT'S SCOPE OF DETENTION CLAIM BECAUSE DEFENSE COUNSEL CONCEDES ITS LACK OF MERIT, THE ISSUE WAS NOT RAISED BELOW, DEFENDANT ARGUES NEITHER PLAIN ERROR NOR EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCES, AND THE ARGUMENT CONTAINS NO RECORD CITATIONS OR MEANINGFUL LEGAL ANALYSIS

In two sentences and one case cite, defendant argues that the length and scope of his detention exceeded legally permissible bounds. Appellant's Brief I at 4. He defines the detention as extending from the initial traffic stop on county road 8170 to his ultimate arrest in American Fork and implies that the detention was unlawful because it exceeded the length necessary to dispose of the speeding violation. Id.

In addition to the deficiencies in the briefs addressed in the Introduction, supra, this Court need not reach the merits of this issue because defendant failed to raise it below and makes no effort on appeal to establish either plain error or exceptional circumstances.<sup>2</sup> State v. Sepulveda, 842 P.2d 913, 917-18 (Utah App. 1992); State v. Webb, 790 P.2d 65, 77 (Utah App. 1990) (the Court will generally "not consider an issue, even a constitutional one, which the appellant raises on appeal for the first time."). Further, the argument contains no record citations and no meaningful legal analysis. See Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(7) and (9); see also State v. Price, 827 P.2d 247, 248-50

---

<sup>2</sup> Defendant's ineffective assistance claim for failure to raise the issue below is addressed at Point III, infra.

(Utah App. 1992); Hoyt, 806 P.2d at 208-09; Ortiz, 782 P.2d at 962.

## POINT II

THIS COURT NEED NOT ADDRESS DEFENDANT'S CHALLENGE TO THE LEGALITY OF THE STOP FOR THE ADDITIONAL REASONS THAT THE CLAIM WAS NOT RAISED BELOW, NEITHER PLAIN ERROR NOR EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCES ARE PRESENTED ON APPEAL, DEFENDANT MISSTATES THE EVIDENCE, AND THE ARGUMENT LACKS CITATION TO THE RECORD OR RELEVANT LEGAL ANALYSIS

Defendant contends that the initial stop of his car violated the Fourth Amendment because he was unreasonably stopped for traveling 43 miles per hour in a 40 mile-per-hour zone.<sup>3</sup> Appellant's Brief I at 4-5.

As with Point I, supra, this issue was not preserved below, and defendant asserts neither plain error nor exceptional circumstances.<sup>4</sup> Sepulveda, 842 P.2d at 917-18; State v. Robinson, 797 P.2d 431, 435 (Utah App. 1990) (declining to consider the constitutionality of the traffic stop because the issue was raised for the first time on appeal). Deputy Pickup expressly testified that his radar clocked defendant at 53 miles

---

<sup>3</sup> Defendant's argument nominally references the state constitution, but he presents no independent state constitutional analysis or citation. Hence, this Court should not reach the state constitutional challenge. State v. Dudley, 847 P.2d 424, 426 (Utah App. 1993); State v. Burk, 839 P.2d 880, 883 n.1 (Utah App. 1992), cert. denied, 853 P.2d 897 (Utah 1993); State v. Adams, 830 P.2d 310, 312 (Utah App.), cert. denied, 843 P.2d 1042 (Utah 1992); State v. Severance, 828 P.2d 1066, 1068 (Utah App. 1992); State v. Boone, 820 P.2d 930, 932 n.2 (Utah App. 1991).

<sup>4</sup> See Point III, infra, for defendant's assertion of ineffective assistance for counsel's failure to raise the issue below.

per hour in a 40 mile-per-hour zone, and that any earlier reference to 43 miles per hour was wholly inaccurate (Tr. 163-64). Defendant's argument misstates these facts, fails to cite to the record, and provides no legal analysis concerning the reasonableness of the initial stop. Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(7) and (9). Accordingly, the merits of the claim should not be reached. Christensen, 812 P.2d at 72-73; Hoyt, 806 P.2d at 208-09; Ortiz, 782 P.2d at 962.

### POINT III

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT ADDRESS THE INEFFECTIVE COUNSEL CLAIM FOR THE FIRST TIME ON APPEAL WHERE DEFENDANT'S APPELLATE COUNSEL WAS COUNSEL OF RECORD BELOW; SHOULD THIS COURT REACHES THE ISSUE, IT WILL FIND THAT DEFENDANT HAS FAILED TO MEET HIS BURDEN OF ESTABLISHING BOTH DEFICIENT PERFORMANCE AND PREJUDICE

Defendant raises for the first time on appeal claims of ineffective assistance against both his trial and his appellate counsel. Appellant's Brief I at 5.

A claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel can be raised for the first time on appeal when the record is adequate to permit determination of the issue and there is new counsel on appeal.<sup>5</sup> State v. Schnoor, 845 P.2d 947, 950 (Utah App. 1993); State v. Johnson, 823 P.2d 484, 487 (Utah App. 1991). Defendant's appellate counsel was counsel of record below (R. 31,

---

<sup>5</sup> Defendant himself untimely raised an ineffective assistance argument at trial after both sides had rested their respective cases (Tr. 264). The court refused to hear the issue at the time (id.). The claim, involving an alleged conflict of interest, is addressed at the end of Point III, infra.

105). Addendum B. Hence, this Court should not entertain defendant's claims of ineffective trial counsel for the first time in his direct appeal.

However, as defendant has filed a pro se brief on appeal and has alleged ineffective assistance, this Court may choose to reach his ineffectiveness claims. Even so, the Court will find that defendant fails to meet his burden of establishing ineffective assistance.

To establish a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, defendant must first show that his counsel rendered deficient performance in a demonstrable manner. State v. Verde, 770 P.2d 116, 118-19 (Utah 1989). He must establish that the performance fell below the objective standard of a reasonable professional and must adduce sufficient evidence to overcome the presumption that counsel rendered adequate assistance and exercised reasonable professional judgment. Butterfield, 817 P.2d at 336. Second, he must establish that a reasonable probability exists that absent counsel's deficient performance, the result would have been different. Id.; see Verde, 770 P.2d at 118-19. The deficient performance must be so prejudicial as to undermine confidence in the reliability of the verdict. Butterfield, 817 P.2d at 336; see Verde, 770 P.2d at 124 n.15. Failure to establish either prong will defeat the entire claim. State v. Oliver, 820 P.2d 474, 478 (Utah App. 1991), cert. denied, 843 P.2d 516 (Utah 1992); see Verde, 770 P.2d at 118-19.



In this case, defendant fails to meet either prong in making his ineffectiveness claim against his trial counsel. While acknowledging the appropriate legal standard, defendant does not conduct the required analysis. He identifies as deficient performance the failure to raise any of the remaining five substantive errors included in defendant's brief on appeal. Appellant's Brief I at 5. He also contends that counsel failed to spend adequate time with him. Appellant's Brief II at 5, 11-12. However, he does not explain how the alleged omissions fell below an objective standard of reasonableness. Butterfield, 817 P.2d at 336. Similarly, he makes no attempt, either in this claim or in the separate substantive arguments, to demonstrate any reasonable probability that either inclusion of any of the five substantive issues below or an increase in the time spent with his counsel would have resulted in a different outcome at trial. Id. Accordingly, his claim must fail. Id.

Defendant also asserts a conflict of interest against both his appellate and his trial counsel. Appellant's Brief I at 5; Appellant's Brief II at 8. The conflict allegedly arises because counsel's efforts on defendant's behalf are funded through the county by means of a contract with the public defenders office.

A conflict of interest claim is analyzed under a different standard than other ineffectiveness claims. When a defendant raises a conflict of interest for the first time on appeal, he must demonstrate with specificity that "an actual

conflict of interest exist[s] which adversely affect[s] his. . . lawyer's performance.'" See Webb, 790 P.2d at 73 (quoting Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.S. 335, 348 (1980)); see also Johnson, 823 P.2d at 488. When such a showing is made, prejudice will be presumed. Johnson, 823 P.2d at 488.

Defendant establishes no actual conflict, relying instead on a novel assertion of an inherent conflict. He offers no support for this assertion and no alternative by which to satisfy his continued demand for counsel without involving this inherent "conflict." Accordingly, he has not established that either appellate or trial counsel is ineffective.

#### POINT IV

IN ADDITION TO DEFENSE COUNSEL'S CONCESSION THAT THE ISSUE INVOLVING A 12-PERSON JURY IS MERITLESS, THIS COURT MAY REFUSE TO ADDRESS THE MERITS OF THE ISSUE BECAUSE IT WAS NOT PRESERVED BELOW, NO EXCEPTION TO THE WAIVER DOCTRINE IS ADVANCED ON APPEAL, AND NO SUPPORTING RECORD CITATION OR LEGAL ANALYSIS AND SUPPORTING AUTHORITY IS PROVIDED; ALTERNATIVELY, DEFENDANT RECEIVED THE "TRIAL BY JURY" TO WHICH HE IS CONSTITUTIONALLY ENTITLED

Defendant argues that his trial by an eight-person jury instead of a twelve-man jury harboring beliefs similar to his deprived him of his sixth amendment right to "trial by jury". Appellant's Brief I at 6; Appellant's Brief II at 2, 14-18.

In addition to the briefing deficiencies outlined in the Introduction, supra, this Court need not reach this issue because it was not raised below, and defendant fails to argue

either plain error or exceptional circumstances.<sup>6</sup> Sepulveda, 842 P.2d at 917-18; Robinson, 797 P.2d at 435. Additionally, the argument contains no citation to the record and no legal analysis or authority supporting the claim, in violation of rule 24(a)(7) and (9), Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. Hoyt, 806 P.2d at 208-09; Ortiz, 782 P.2d at 962; Koulis, 746 P.2d at 1184-85; see also Wareham, 772 P.2d at 966.

Defendant's pro se brief includes a detailed argument on this issue. Appellant's Brief II at 14-18. In view of the leniency afforded pro se defendants on appeal, see Winter, 820 P.2d at 919-20, this Court may choose to reach the merits of the issue. Therefore, the State briefly addresses the claim.

As defendant recognizes, at common law a jury was required to be comprised of twelve men. Appellant's Brief II at 14-15. However, the United States Supreme Court has determined that the Federal Constitution does not codify the common law requirement of a 12-person jury. Williams v. Florida, 399 U.S. 78, 86-103 (1970). To the contrary, it has held that "the 12-man panel is not a necessary ingredient of 'trial by jury,'" and that a jury by fewer than twelve, when provided for by state law, does not violate the Sixth Amendment. Id., 399 U.S. at 86. In this case, defendant was tried before an eight-person jury, as provided for by article I, section 10 of the Utah Constitution. Accordingly, he received the "trial by jury" to which the federal

---

<sup>6</sup> His claim of trial counsel's ineffectiveness in failing to preserve the issue is addressed in Point III, supra.

constitution entitles him, and his argument must fail. Id. Moreover, his state constitutional right to a jury trial was fulfilled as well. See State v. Nuttall, 611 P.2d 722, 724 (Utah 1980) (affirming a misdemeanor conviction before a jury of less than twelve pursuant to article I, section 10 of the Utah Constitution).

#### POINT V

DEFENDANT'S CLAIM THAT IMPOUNDMENT OF HIS VEHICLE CONSTITUTES AN UNLAWFUL BILL OF ATTAINDER IS NOT PROPERLY BEFORE THIS COURT BECAUSE IT WAS NOT RAISED BELOW, NO EXCEPTION TO THE WAIVER DOCTRINE IS URGED ON APPEAL, AND NO RECORD CITATION OR SUPPORTING LEGAL ANALYSIS APPEARS IN THE BRIEF; ADDITIONALLY, A RULING ON THIS ISSUE WILL NOT AFFECT DEFENDANT'S CONVICTION OR ENTITLE HIM TO HIS REQUESTED RELIEF

A bill of attainder is a law which "imposes guilt, and inflicts punishment, upon an identifiable individual or group without judicial process." Redwood Gym v. Salt Lake County Comm'n, 624 P.2d 1138, 1147 (Utah 1981); see Nixon v. Administrator of General Services, 433 U.S. 425, 468 (1977).

Defendant contends that the impounding of his car constitutes an unlawful bill of attainder because he was required to pay a fine to get the car back without any judicial declaration of guilt. Appellant's Brief I at 6. In addition, defendant's pro se brief claims that the breaking of the car window and his incarceration for 22 days under the imposition of "excessive" bail constitute unlawful bills of attainder. Appellant's Brief II at 1, 10-11.

Once again, this issue was not preserved below, and defendant argues neither plain error nor exceptional

circumstances.<sup>7</sup> Neither brief provides any legal analysis or citation to the record. Accordingly, this Court should decline to reach the merits of the claims. Sepulveda, 842 P.2d at 917-18; Webb, 790 P.2d at 77; Hoyt, 806 P.2d at 208-09; Ortiz, 782 P.2d at 962.

Furthermore, defendant seeks only reversal of his conviction. Appellant's Brief I at 9; Appellant's Brief II at 20. Assuming, arguendo, that this issue could be resolved in defendant's favor, he would not be entitled to the requested relief because his conviction was obtained independent of the impounding of his car, the breaking of its window, or the imposition of bail.

#### POINT VI

THIS COURT NEED NOT REACH DEFENDANT'S CHALLENGE TO THE JURY INSTRUCTIONS AS IT WAS NOT PRESERVED BELOW, MANIFEST INJUSTICE IS NOT ARGUED ON APPEAL, AND NO RECORD CITATIONS OR STANDARD OF REVIEW APPEAR IN THE BRIEFS; ALTERNATIVELY, THE JURY INSTRUCTION ACCURATELY STATED THE DUTY OF THE JURY TO FOLLOW THE LAW AS STATED BY THE COURT, AND ITS USE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE ERROR

Defendant asserts that the trial court erroneously instructed the jury that it was required to follow the law as given to it by the court. Appellant's Brief I at 7-8; Appellant's Brief II at 19-20. He contends that the instruction essentially directed the jury that it was "bound by the law" and

---

<sup>7</sup> His ineffective assistance claim on this issue is addressed in Point III, supra.

had to find him guilty. Appellant's Brief I at 7-8; Appellant's Brief II at 19-20.

Once again, this issue was not preserved below, and defendant does not establish any manifest injustice to enable this Court to reach the merits of his claim on appeal.<sup>8</sup> State v. Becker, 803 P.2d 1290, 1293 (Utah App. 1990); see also Utah R. Crim. P. 19(c) (requiring that the grounds of any objection to jury instructions be stated with specificity). The arguments in both briefs are devoid of record citations and statements of the appropriate standard of review. Hence, this Court need not reach the merits of defendant's claim. Christensen, 812 P.2d at 72-73.

In the event this Court grants defendant leniency to raise this issue for the first time on appeal based on the legal analysis in his pro se brief, Winter, 820 P.2d at 919-20, it will find defendant's position contrary to current law.

This Court will reverse based on an improper jury instruction only where defendant demonstrates prejudice stemming from the instructions viewed in the aggregate. State v. Haston, 811 P.2d 929, 931 (Utah App. 1991), rev'd. on other grounds, 846 P.2d 1276 (Utah 1993); State v. McCumber, 622 P.2d 353, 359 (Utah 1980), abrogated on other grounds, State v. Ramirez, 817 P.2d 774 (Utah 1991). The precise wording and specificity contained in an

---

<sup>8</sup> Trial counsel expressly said that he had no objections to any of the jury instructions (Tr. 262), and defendant only generally objected to the giving of any jury instruction as constituting jury tampering (Tr. 265-66). See Point III, supra, for defendant's ineffective assistance claim.

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